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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION
The DBP Leasing Corporation (DBPLC), formerly named National Development
Corporation – Maritime Leasing Corporation, was acquired by the Development Bank of
the Philippines (DBP) from the National Development Corporation (NDC) on June 12,
2008. DBP then renamed the company DBP Maritime Leasing Corporation (DMLC). Its
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) registration which included the increase in
the capital stock was approved on May 11, 2009 under Registration No. 128538. DMLC
changed its name to DBP Leasing Corporation on January 14, 2010 to reflect the
change in the scope of its business.
In 2014, DBPLC introduced additional financial services such as amortized commercial
loan and receivables discounting to expand its services.
From a stockholders’ equity of P6.250 million in 2004, the amount increased to P1.086
billion as at December 31, 2020.
Authorized capital stock is P1.5 billion of which P1 billion is common and P0.5 billion is
preferred. Both shares have a par value per share of P100.00. DBP’s subscribed and
paid-up capital is P1 billion common shares and P132 million preferred shares.
DBPLC Chairman of the Board is Alberto G. Romulo. As at December 31, 2020, the
Corporation has 25 regular employees, one probationary, and four contractual
personnel.
AUDIT METHODOLOGY AND SCOPE OF AUDIT
Our audit covered the examination, on a test basis, of transactions and accounts of
DBPLC for the period January 1 to December 31, 2020 to enable us to express an
opinion on the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 in
accordance with the International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions. Also, we
conducted our audit to assess compliance with pertinent laws, rules and regulations as
well as adherence to prescribed policies and procedures.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(In Philippine Peso)
I.

Comparative Financial Position

Assets
Liabilities
Equity

2020
3,552,888,344
2,466,170,353
1,086,717,991

2019
(As restated)
3,347,481,320
2,259,519,322
1,087,961,998

Increase/
(Decrease)
205,407,024
206,651,031
(1,244,007)

i

II. Comparative Results of Operations

Income
Expenses
Comprehensive Income

2020
203,672,968
187,200,977
16,471,991

2019
(As restated)
228,318,551
186,689,066
41,629,485

Increase/
(Decrease)
(24,645,583)
511,911
(25,157,494)

III. Comparative Budget and Actual Expenditures
2020

Personnel expenses
Maintenance and other
operating expenses
Capital expenditures

2019

Budget
35,162,360

Actual
28,440,239

Budget
39,452,226

Actual
(As restated)
23,711,000

53,531,088
9,782,000

35,911,962
797,860

48,567,448
2,558,000

38,173,491
1,010,928

AUDITOR’S OPINION
The Auditor rendered an unmodified opinion on the fairness of presentation of the
financial statements of DBPLC for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.
SUMMARY OF TOTAL SUSPENSIONS, DISALLOWANCES AND CHARGES AS OF
YEAR-END
As of December 31, 2020, total disallowances amounted to P3,323,148. There were no
audit suspensions and charges as of year-end.
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR YEAR’S AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS
All of the audit recommendations embodied in CY 2019 AAR were fully implemented.
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PART I

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
COMMISSION ON AUDIT
Corporate Government Sector
Cluster I – Banking and Credit
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors
DBP Leasing Corporation
Makati City
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of DBP Leasing Corporation (DBPLC), which
comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and
the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the DBPLC as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs), as modified by the application of the
financial reporting reliefs issued by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and approved
by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), as described in Note 2 to the
financial statements.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAIs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the DBPLC in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippine Public Sector,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which states that the financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFRSs/Philippine Accounting
Standards, as modified by the application of the financial reporting reliefs issued by the
BSP and approved by the SEC in response to the COVID19 pandemic. The reliefs cover

only current year transactions/events and do not impact the comparative period/s. The
impact of the application of the financial reporting reliefs on the financial statements is
discussed in detail in Note 2. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, as modified by the application of the financial
reporting reliefs issued by the BSP and approved by the SEC, as described in Note 2 to
the financial statements, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
DBPLC’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the DBPLC or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the DBPLC’s financial
reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISSAIs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISSAIs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the DBPLC’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the DBPLC’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the DBPLC to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in accordance with PFRS, as modified by the
application of the financial reporting reliefs issued by the BSP and approved by the
SEC, as described in Note 2 to the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
Report on Other Regulatory Requirements
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information required under the
Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 in Note 24 and Revenue Regulations 152010 in Note 25 to the 2020 financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with
the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Bureau of Internal Revenue,
respectively, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
supplementary information is the responsibility of management and has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in our audits of the basic financial statements. In our
opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
COMMISSION ON AUDIT

MARIE FRANCES HAZEL S. ACEBEDO
OIC - Supervising Auditor
February 26, 2021

DBP LEASING CORPORATION
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Development Bank of the Philippines)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In Philippine Peso)

Note

2020

2019
(As restated)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Lease receivables, net
Financial assets at amortized cost, net
Inventories
Other assets

4
5
6
7
8

517,963,571
625,436,157
665,015,253
259,743
1,205,072
1,809,879,796

105,730,085
552,921,672
627,263,532
372,963
118,604
1,286,406,856

Non-current Assets
Lease receivables, net
Financial assets at amortized cost, net
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

5
6
9
10
22
8

938,856,604
714,212,894
29,187,122
1,867,508
47,697,387
11,187,033
1,743,008,548
3,552,888,344

1,105,360,224
891,995,693
5,141,591
1,935,202
44,203,713
12,438,041
2,061,074,464
3,347,481,320

Current Liabilities
Payables
Inter-agency payables
Loans payable
Lease liability
Trust liabilities

12
13
14
15
16

21,461,418
5,225,469
1,476,832,334
4,126,546
166,763,895
1,674,409,662

35,314,337
7,676,648
1,225,115,145
0
108,274,561
1,376,380,691

Non-current Liabilities
Loans payable
Lease liability
Trust liabilities

14
15
16

514,688,726
20,280,082
256,791,883
791,760,691
2,466,170,353

602,250,000
0
280,888,631
883,138,631
2,259,519,322

1,132,000,000
(45,282,009)
1,086,717,991

1,132,000,000
(44,038,002)
1,087,961,998

3,552,888,344

3,347,481,320

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Stockholder's Equity
Share capital
Retained earnings (Deficit)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

17

The Notes on pages 9 to 53 form part of these financial statements.
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DBP LEASING CORPORATION
(A wholly -owned subsidiary of Development Bank of the Philippines)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In Philippine Peso)

Note

2020

2019
(Restated)

Interest income
Lease income
Miscellaneous income

18
19
20

106,672,347
94,863,480
2,137,141
203,672,968

119,031,047
105,954,987
3,332,517
228,318,551

EXPENSES

21

INCOME

Personnel expenses
Maintenance and other operating expenses

(28,440,329) (23,711,000)
(35,911,962) (38,173,491)
(64,352,291) (61,884,491)

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

139,320,677

Non-cash expenses

21

NET INCOME AFTER PROVISION,
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Interest expense
Bank charge

NET INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
Income Tax Expense
Final Tax Expense
NET INCOME AFTER TAX

(8,507,210)

130,813,467

14

166,434,060
(8,957,056)

157,477,004

(107,116,276) (97,968,143)
(871)
(3,795)
(107,117,147) (97,971,938)
23,696,320

22

59,505,066

(7,114,254) (17,821,887)
(110,075)
(53,694)
16,471,991

41,629,485

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

0

0

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

16,471,991

41,629,485

The Notes on pages 9 to 53 form part of these financial statements.
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DBP LEASING CORPORATION
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Development Bank of the Philippines)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In Philippine Pesos)

Particulars

Balance, January 01, 2019

No. of Shares

11,320,000

SHARE CAPITAL
Common
Preferred
(Note 17)
(Note 17)
1,000,000,000

132,000,000

Prior period adjustments
Balance, January 01, 2019, As restated

11,320,000

1,000,000,000

132,000,000

Net income for the year - as restated
Cash dividends declared
Adjustment
Balance, December 31, 2019, As restated

11,320,000

1,000,000,000

132,000,000

Net income for the year
Cash dividends declared
Balance, December 31, 2020

11,320,000

1,000,000,000

132,000,000

Retained
Earnings/(Deficit)
(Note 17)

TOTAL

(105,489,032 )

1,026,510,968

44,083,918

44,083,918

(61,405,114 )

1,070,594,886

41,629,485
(25,262,373 )
1,000,000

41,629,485
(25,262,373 )
1,000,000

(44,038,002 )

1,087,961,998

16,471,991
(17,715,998 )

16,471,991
(17,715,998 )

(45,282,009 )

1,086,717,991

The Notes on pages 9 to 53 form part of these financial statements.
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DBP LEASING CORPORATION
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Development Bank of the Philippines)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In Philippine Peso)
Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Collection of income
Loan and financial lease releases
Collection of lease and loan principal
Collection of car/salary loan/advances
Collection of deposit on finance leases
Payment of operating expenses
Payment of marine hull insurance of leased vessels
Advances from lessees
BIR, Pag-ibig, SSS contributions, Philhealth
collections, net of remittances
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of office/IT equipment and IT software
Proceeds from sale of properties
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Proceeds from borrowings
Payments on borrowings
Payment of lease liability
Payment of cash dividend
Net cash provided by financing activities

2020

2019

181,218,383
(405,698,472 )
643,155,075
932,168
306,750
(180,825,349 )
0
29,366,432

218,948,905
(1,271,980,213 )
925,600,909
1,270,350
10,179,708
(149,456,011 )
(6,449,843 )
8,594,116

(6,226,204 )
262,228,783

(4,348,727 )
(267,640,806 )

(797,860 )
31,906
(765,954 )

(1,010,928 )
0
(1,010,928 )

1,180,000,000
(1,010,160,950 )
(1,352,395 )
(17,715,998 )
150,770,657

1,240,000,000
(900,904,988 )
0
(25,262,373 )
313,832,639

412,233,486

45,180,905

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BEGINNING OF YEAR

4

105,730,085

60,549,180

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

4

517,963,571

105,730,085

The Notes on pages 9 to 53 form part of these financial statements.
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DBP LEASING CORPORATION
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Development Bank of the Philippines)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2020 and 2019
(Amounts in Philippine Peso unless otherwise stated)
1. GENERAL / CORPORATE INFORMATION
Formerly named National Development Corporation – Maritime Leasing Corporation,
DBP Leasing Corporation was acquired by the Development Bank of the Philippines
(DBP) from the National Development Corporation (NDC) on June 12, 2008. DBP then
renamed the company DBP Maritime Leasing Corporation. Its Securities and Exchange
Commission registration which included the increase in the capital stock was approved
on May 11, 2009 under Corporation Registration No. 128538. DBP Maritime Leasing
Corporation (DMLC) changed its name to DBP Leasing Corporation (DBPLC) on
January 14, 2010 and its scope of business to engage in the business of leasing in all
aspects, and to arrange or underwrite or administer leases of all types of real or personal
properties and all kinds of equipment, machines, vehicles and facilities, especially
maritime vessels for the carriage of passengers, freight, cargo, vessels, goods and
merchandise of every kind and description.
On April 20, 2015, DBPLC amended its primary purpose to reflect the change in the
scope of its business as follows:
a.

To engage, transact and deal in the business of leasing and financing in all its
aspects and forms, including that of financial leases and operating leases, with
the power to arrange, underwrite, manage, develop or administer leases of any
and all types of rental and personal properties, any and all kinds of equipment,
machineries, vehicles, vessels, airplanes, appliances, merchandise and facilities,
limited to sale-lease back arrangements, hire-purchase agreements and other
lease financing schemes;

b.

to extend credit facilities to single proprietorships, and to industrial, commercial
or agricultural enterprises, whether public or private in character, by way of loans
or direct lending, or discounting, rediscounting or factoring commercial papers or
accounts receivables, or by buying or selling contracts, leases, chattel mortgages
or other evidence of and powers of a financing company under the Financing
Company Act, as amended, and to do any act or engage in any activity that may
be directly or indirectly necessary, proper or convenient for the accomplishment
of its primary purpose.

From a stockholders‟ equity of P6.25 million in 2004, the amount increased to P1.09
billion as of December 31, 2020.
Authorized capital stock is P1.5 billion of which P1.0 billion is common and P0.5 billion is
preferred. Both shares have a par value per share of P100.00. DBP‟s subscribed and
paid up capital is P1.0 billion common shares and P132.0 million preferred shares.
DBPLC‟s registered address is at G/F DBP Bldg., Sen Gil J. Puyat Ave. corner Makati
Avenue, Makati City.
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2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards/Philippine Accounting Standards (PFRSs/PASs), as modified by
the application of the following financial reporting reliefs issued by the Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas (BSP) and approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic: 1) exclude exposure of affected borrowers from
the computation of the past due loan ratios and the waiver of BSP documentary
requirements for restructured loans as long as these loans were current as of March 8,
2020; 2) staggered booking of allowance for credit losses over a maximum period of five
(5) years for all types of credits extended to individuals and businesses directly affected
by COVID-19 as of March 8, 2020. The reliefs cover only current-year transactions/
events and do not impact the comparative period/s.
Impact on the affected financial statement line items if the provision for credit losses was
measured and recorded in accordance with PFRS follows:
Affected financial line items
Balance Sheet accounts
Lease receivables
Financial assets at amortised cost
Deferred tax assets
Retained earnings (deficit)
Income statement accounts
Non-cash expenses
Provision for income tax (benefit)
Net income (loss)
1
2

As Reported

1,564,292,760
1,379,228,146
47,697,388
(42,046,810)
8,507,210
7,114,253
16,471,990

Effect of
1
Pandemic

Inclusive of
2
Effect

(10,694,337)
(119,599,167)
39,088,051
(91,205,453)

1,553,598,423
1,259,628,979
86,785,439
(133,252,263)

130,293,504
(39,088,051)
(91,205,453)

138,800,714
(31,973,798)
(74,733,463)

Effect of booking of provision for credit losses in accordance with PFRS 9
Adjusted financial line items if the provision for credit losses was measured and recorded in accordance with PFRS 9

The amount of Allowance for credit losses (ACL) recognized for the year and the
remaining balance as at December 31, 2020 as follows:
Impact of Relief Measure on the Booking of ACL
Total ACL approved for staggered booking
Recognized (amortized) allowance
Remaining ACL for staggered booking

As of December 31, 2020
130,293,504
0
130,293,504

The Corporation received the BSP‟s approval for the staggered booking of ACL on
December 29, 2020. Total allowance approved for staggered booking amounted to
P140,423,764 based on the computation of ACL as of September 30, 2020. The
Corporation determined using the data as of December 31, 2020 that the total ACL
subject for staggered booking would only be P130,293,504 including ACL on Accrued
Interest Receivables (AIR) due to changes in circumstances on the accounts affected by
COVID-19 pandemic that was previously requested for staggered booking of allowance.
No allowance for provision for credit losses on the outstanding principal balance of lease
and loan portfolio and AIR was recognized for the year 2020. The BSP allowed the
booking of the first instalment for probable credit loss amounting to P26,058,701 on the
10

first working day of 2021 which has been duly complied with by DBPLC and the next
booking in January 2022 and June 2022 for P13,029,350 each period and every semiannual thereafter until June 2025. Balance of unrecognized (unamortized) allowance on
lease and loan portfolio amounted to P119,173,224 as of December 31, 2020. Total ACL
on accrued interest receivable of accounts affected by COVID-19 pandemic amounted to
P11,120,280. Staggered booking of Allowance on AIR will coincide with the approved
schedule of booking/amortization of ACL on Lease and Loan Portfolio.
These financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except when
otherwise stated. The financial statements preparation in conformity with PFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Corporation‟s accounting policies.
The Corporation adopts the accrual method of accounting. These financial statements
are presented in Philippine Peso, the Corporation‟s functional currency.
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies adopted in the presentation of the Financial Statements are set
out below. These policies are consistently applied unless otherwise stated.
3.1.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements.
The Corporation presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity. An
analysis regarding recovery of assets or settlement of liability within twelve (12) months
after the statement of financial position date (current) and more than twelve (12) months
after the statement of financial position date (non-current) is presented in Note 27 to the
financial statements.
3.2.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

a. New standards and amendments issued and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2020.


Amendments to PFRS 3 Business Combinations – Definition of a Business.
The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of
activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. It
narrows the definitions of a business and of outputs by focusing on goods and
services provided to customers and by removing the reference to an ability to
reduce costs. In addition, it provides guidance and illustrative examples to help
entities assess whether a substantive process has been acquired and remove
the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs. The amendment
also adds an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
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The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2020, with earlier application permitted. The amendments had no material
impact on the disclosures and amounts recognized on the Corporation‟s financial
statements.


Amendments to PFRS 9 Financial Instruments, PAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and PFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures – Interest Rate Benchmark Reform. The
amendment states:
-

-

-

entities would continue to apply certain hedge accounting requirements
assuming that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows
and cash flows from the hedging instrument are based will not be altered as a
result of interest rate benchmark reform;
are mandatory for all hedging relationships that are directly affected by the
interest rate benchmark reform;
are not intended to provide relief from any other consequences arising from
interest rate benchmark reform (if a hedging relationship no longer meets the
requirements for hedge accounting for reasons other than those specified by
the amendments, discontinuation of hedge accounting is required); and
require specific disclosures about the extent to which the entities‟ hedging
relationships are affected by the amendments.

The application of this amendment had no material impact on the Corporation‟s
financial statements.


Amendment to PFRS 16 Leases – Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions. The
amendment provides lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a
COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification.
The application of this amendment had no material impact on the Corporation‟s
financial statements



Amendments to PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and
Amendment to PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors – Definition of Material. The amendments clarify that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which
provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.
The amendments will not have an impact on the disclosures and amounts
recognized on the Corporation‟s financial statements.

b. New standards effective after the reporting period ended December 31, 2020.
Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of the Corporation‟s financial
statements are listed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards when
they become effective.
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Amendments to PFRS 9 Financial Instruments, PAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, PFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and PFRS 16 Leases – Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2. The amendments relate to the modification
of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities, specific hedge
accounting requirements, and disclosure requirements applying PFRS 7 to
accompany the amendments regarding modifications and hedge accounting.
Management is currently assessing the impact of this new standard in its
financial statements.



Amendments to PFRS 3 Business Combination – Reference to the
Conceptual Framework (effective January 1, 2022). The amendments update
an outdated reference to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 3 without
significantly changing the requirements in the standard as follows:
-

-

update PFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of
the 1989 Framework;
add to PFRS 3 a requirement that, for transactions and other events within
the scope of PAS 37 or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies PAS 37 or IFRIC 21
(instead of the Conceptual Framework) to identify the liabilities it has
assumed in a business combination; and
add to PFRS 3 an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

Management is currently assessing the impact of this new standard in its
financial statements.


Amendments to PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022
with early application permitted). The amendments prohibit deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing
those items, in profit or loss.
Management is currently assessing the impact of this new standard in its
financial statements.



Amendments to PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets – Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 with early application
permitted). The amendments specify that the „cost of fulfilling‟ a contract
comprises the „costs that relate directly to the contract‟. Costs that relate directly
to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples
would be direct labor, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).
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The application of this amendment had no impact on the Corporation‟s financial
statements.


Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2018–2020 (effective January*1,
2022)
-

PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards – Subsidiary as a first-time adopter. The amendment permits a
subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1 to measure cumulative
translation differences using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the
parent‟s date of transition to PFRSs.

-

PFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ test for
derecognition of financial liabilities. The amendment clarifies which fees
an entity includes when it applies the „10 per cent‟ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of
PFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity
includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the
other‟s behalf.

-

PFRS 16 Leases – Lease incentives. The amendment to Illustrative
Example 13 accompanying PFRS 16 removes from the example the
illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in
order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives are illustrated in
that example.

-

PAS 41 Agriculture – Taxation in fair value measurements. The
amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 for entities
to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological
asset using a present value technique. This will ensure consistency with the
requirements in PFRS 13.

Management is currently assessing the impact of these amendments in its
financial statements.


Amendments to PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts – Extension of the Temporary
Exemption from Applying PFRS 9. The amendment changes the fixed expiry
date for the temporary exemption in PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts from applying
PFRS 9 Financial Instruments, so that entities would be required to apply PFRS
9 for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023.
The new standard will not have an impact on the disclosures and amounts
recognized on the Corporation‟s financial statements.



PFRS 17 Insurance Contracts. The new standard establishes principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts,
including reinsurance contracts held and investment contracts with discretionary
participation features issued. The objective of the standard is to ensure that
entities provide relevant information in a way that faithfully represents those
contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to
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assess the effect that contracts within the scope of the standard have on the
entity‟s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. The standard is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, with earlier
application permitted.
The new standard will not have an impact on the disclosures and amounts
recognized on the Corporation‟s financial statements.


Amendments to PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements –
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 deferred to January 1, 2023). The
amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping
companies determine whether, in the statement of financial position, debt and
other liabilities with an uncertain settlement date should be classified as current
(due or potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-current.
Management is currently assessing the impact of this new standard in its
financial statements.

3.3.

Financial instruments

Initial recognition
A financial asset or financial liability is recognized in the statements of financial position
when the Corporation becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial instruments are classified as financial assets and financial liabilities or equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement.
Classification of financial instruments
Financial Assets
1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets measured at FVTPL shall consist of the following:


Financial assets held for trading (HFT), which include stand-alone and/or
embedded derivatives, except a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract
or designated and effective hedging instruments, as defined in PFRS 9; and



Financial assets designated at FVTPL as defined in PFRS 9.

2. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCl)
A financial asset measured at FVTOCI shall meet both of the following conditions:


The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
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The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

3. Financial assets measured at amortised cost
A financial asset that is a debt instrument, other than those that are designated at
FVTPL, which meet both of the following conditions:


The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and



The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

The Corporation‟s short-term investments, Loans receivable – others, accounts
receivable, accrued interest receivable and car loan receivable are under this category.
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities shall be classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, except for:
1. Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL. This shall consist of the following:
a. Financial liabilities HFT, including derivative liabilities that are not accounted for
as hedging instruments; and
b. Financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.
2. Financial liabilities which shall be subsequently measured in accordance with the
provisions of PFRS 9, as follows:
a. Financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify
for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies;
b. Financial guarantee contracts, as defined under PFRS 9;
c. Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate; and
d. Contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination.
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets
A financial asset or, where applicable, a part of financial or part of a group of similar
financial assets, is derecognized when (1) contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire: or (2) transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of
the financial asset and either has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset; or (3) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
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flows of the financial asset, but has assumed a contractual obligation to pay the cash
flows to one or more recipients in an arrangement; or (4) neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, but not
retained control of the financial asset.
Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender or
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing financial liability is modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment of financial assets
Impairment of assets carried at amortised cost
Loans and receivables that are measured at amortised cost.
DBPLC being a corporation with simple operations, as classified by the Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas (BSP), followed the guidelines provided in BSP Circular 1011 in loan
classification and setting up allowance for credit losses, specifically Appendix
18/Q10/N11 of the Manual of Regulations for Non-Bank Financial Intermediaries.
Loans and other credit exposures with unpaid principal and/or interest are classified and
provided with allowance for credit losses (ACL) based on the number of days of missed
payments.
3.4.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. At the end of each
financial reporting period, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.
The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.
Major repairs and maintenance are capitalized. Items below the threshold of P15,000.00
and semi-expendable items are adjusted to conform with COA Circular No. 2016-006
dated December 29, 2016.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
the depreciable assets. Amount subject for depreciation is net of 10 per cent residual
value.
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The estimated life of the Corporation‟s property, plant and equipment and foreclosed
property/assets are as follows:
IT equipment
Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Right-of-use asset
Transportation equipment, motor vehicles
Building

5 years
5 years
5 years
Lease term
7 years
30 years

An item of property, plant and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment loss, if any, is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefit is expected to arise from continuing use of an asset. Any gain or
loss arising from derecognition of the asset is included in the statement of
comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognized.
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the books until they are no longer in use and no
further charge for depreciation is made.
3.5.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost and amortised on a straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the assets. The Corporation‟s intangible assets are assessed for
impairment when there is indication that the intangible assets may be impaired.
The Corporations intangible assets comprise of computer software, Leasing and
Financial Management System (LFMS) and Document Management System (DMS).
The estimated life of the Corporation‟s intangible assets are as follows:
Computer software
LFMS/DMS
3.6.

5 years
3 years

Other Assets

Other assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Corporation as a result of past
events. They are recognized in the financial statements when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow and the asset has a cost or value that can be measured
reliably.
Other current assets comprise prepayments and deposits. Prepayments represent
expenses not yet incurred but already paid. Prepayments are initially recorded as assets
and measured at cost. Subsequently, these are charged as expense in the statement of
comprehensive income as they are consumed in operations or expire in the passage of
time. Deposits represent amount deposited/paid in advance for rentals of office
equipment, office space and parking space. Deposits are initially recorded at cost and
reversed upon receipt of refund from suppliers.
Other non-current assets comprise of foreclosed properties/assets. Foreclosed
properties/assets are initially recorded at the carrying amount of the lease/loan
(outstanding balance adjusted for any unamortized premium or discount less allowance
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for credit losses) plus booked accrued interest less allowance for credit losses plus
transaction costs incurred upon acquisition. Depreciation is computed using the straight
line method over the estimated useful life of the depreciable assets
The foreclosed properties/assets include vessels or equipment acquired through
repossession or foreclosure that the Corporation intends to classify as non-current
assets as held-for-sale (NCAHS). In order for the properties acquired through
foreclosure or repossession to be classified as NCAHS, the Corporation included in its
criteria that there should be an existence of a buyer and that the sale should be
completed within 12 months from the date of classification.
The Corporation classifies a non-current asset (or disposal group) as held-for-sale if its
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. In the event that the sale of the asset is extended beyond 12
months, the extension of the period required to complete the sale does not preclude an
asset from being classified as held-for-sale if the delay is caused by events or
circumstances beyond the Corporation‟s control and as long as there is a ready buyer.
Assets classified as held-for-sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts,
immediately prior to their classification as held-for-sale, and their fair values less costs to
sell.
The Corporation shall recognize an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent writedown of the asset at fair value less cost to sell. Gain for any subsequent increase in fair
value less cost to sell of an asset is recognized to the extent of the cumulative
impairment loss previously recognized. Assets classified as held-for-sale are not subject
to depreciation. If the Corporation has classified an asset as held-for-sale, but the criteria
for it to be recognized as held-for-sale are no longer satisfied, the Corporation shall
cease to classify the asset as held-for-sale.
The gain or loss arising from the sale or remeasurement of held-for-sale assets is
recognized in profit or loss and included as part of Other Income (Expenses) in the
statement of comprehensive income.
3.7.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities which comprise loans payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses
payables, lease deposits and other liabilities other than tax-related and other interagency payables are recognized when the Corporation becomes a party to the
contractual terms of the instrument. All interest-related charges are presented as part of
Financial Expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.
Loans payable represents amount drawn from the Corporation‟s loan facilities. They are
recognized at proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.
Payables and inter-agency payables are initially recognized at transaction price and
subsequently measured at amortised cost less settlement payments.
Trust liabilities are recognized at contract price.
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Dividends to the national government are recognized upon declaration of the
Corporation.
3.8.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the asset and settle liability, simultaneously.
3.9.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations of a legal or constructive
commitment, resulting from a past event, will probably lead to an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits to settle the obligation and they can be estimated reliably
even if the timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the
reporting period, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present
obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligation as a
whole. When time value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to
their present value using a pretax rate that reflects current market assessments and the
risk specific to the obligation. The increase in the provisions due to passage of time is
recognized as interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
In those case where possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot
be measured reliably, contingent liability is recognized in the financial statements.
Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Corporation that do not yet meet
the recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not
recognized in the financial statements.
3.10.

Stockholders’ Equity

Share Capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.
Retained earnings (deficit) represent all current and prior period results as reported in
the statement of comprehensive income, reduced/(increased) by the amount of
dividends declared.
3.11.

Revenue and cost and expenses recognition

Revenues comprise interest income on loans, receivable financed, deposits and
placements, lease income from finance lease and operating lease contracts and other
miscellaneous income.
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Corporation and the amount can be measured reliably. The following specific
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recognition criteria of income and expenses must also be met before revenue is
recognized:
a. Interest – Interest income and expenses are recognized in profit or loss for all
instruments measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a
financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest
expense over a relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability.
The income on financial lease receivable is allocated over the lease term on a
systematic and rational basis. The excess of aggregate rentals over the cost of the
leased property constitutes the “Deferred Lease Income”.
b. Lease income from operating lease – Revenue from operating lease contracts is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis over
the lease term.
c. Other income – Other income is recognized in the period in which these are earned.
Operating cost and expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income
upon the utilization of assets or services or at the date they are incurred. All financial
expenses are reported in profit or loss on an accrual basis, except capitalized borrowing
cost which are included as part of the cost of related qualifying asset.
3.12.

Leases

Finance leases, where the Corporation transfers substantially all the risk and benefits
incidental to the ownership of the leased item to the lessee, are included in the
statement of financial position under “Finance Lease Receivables” account. A finance
lease receivable is recognized at an amount equal to net investment in the lease. The
difference between the gross lease receivable and the net investment in the lease is
recognized as unearned lease income. All income resulting from the receivable is
included as part of “Lease Income” in the statement of comprehensive income.
The Corporation is the lessor under the finance lease.
Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income from operating
lease is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term.
Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the year they are earned.
The Corporation is both a lessor and lessee under the operating lease.
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Operating lease, in which the Corporation is a lessee to the contract recognizes Right-ofuse asset equivalent to the present value of lease rentals for the contract period,
including advance payments.
The Corporation is a lessee of an office space reflected on the balance sheet as right-ofuse asset and a lease liability equivalent to the present value of lease rentals for the
contract period, including advances. Lease payment is allocated between a reduction of
a lease liability and an interest expense. The Corporation classifies its right-of-use asset
in a consistent manner to its property, plant and equipment.
Lease is either non-cancellable or may only be cancelled by incurring a substantive
termination fee. The Corporation is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying
leased assets as security and must keep the property in good state of repair and retain
the property in their original condition at the end of the lease. Further, the Corporation
must incur maintenance fees on such items in accordance with lease contract.
3.13.

Residual Value of leased assets and deposit on lease contracts

The residual value of leased assets represents the estimated proceeds from the disposal
of the leased asset at the end of the lease term in a finance lease, which approximates
the amount of the lease deposit paid by the lessee at the inception of the lease. At the
end of the lease term, the residual value of the leased asset is generally applied against
the lease deposit of the lessee. The residual value of the leased asset is presented as
part of the Finance lease receivables in the statement of financial position.
3.14.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a “qualifying asset” or an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready
for its intended use or sale, are included as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing
costs which consist of interest and other cost that the Corporation incurs in connection
with borrowing of funds are recognized as expense in the year in which these costs are
incurred using the effective interest method.
3.15.

Income Taxes

Current tax
Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid
at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable income for the
year. Taxable income differs from net income reported in the statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes item of income and expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further exclude items that are never taxable or
deductible. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as component
of income tax expense in statement of comprehensive income.
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Deferred tax
Deferred tax is accounted for using liability method, on temporary difference at the end
of the reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain
exceptions, (1) deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences and (2) deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the taxable
temporary differences can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will be available to allow such deferred assets to be
recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such
rates have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Corporation expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Most
changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Corporation has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.
3.16.

Employee benefits

a. Retirement benefits
The Corporation provides retirement benefits to employees based on the provisions
of The Labor Code of the Philippines. Accrued amount of retirement pay is presented
under Payables account in the statement of financial position.
b. Compensated Absences
Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days remaining
at the end of the reporting period. They are included in the Payables account in the
statement of financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Corporation
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

23

3.17.

Related party transactions

Related party transactions are transfer of resources, services or obligations between the
Corporation and its related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.
Parties are considered related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and
operating decisions.
In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.
3.18.

Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Event after the reporting period pertains to an event/s which could be favorable or
unfavorable, that occurs between the end of the reporting period and the date that the
financial statements are authorized for issue. Post year end events up to date of the
auditor‟s report that provide additional information about the Corporation‟s position at
financial reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post
year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial
statements, when material.
4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks and short-term
investments maturing not more than 91days from date of purchase.

Cash in bank
Short-term investments
Emergency Contingency Fund
Petty cash

2020
392,700,481
125,123,090
100,000
40,000
517,963,571

2019
85,374,130
20,315,955
0
40,000
105,730,085

Cash in bank earns interest at rates based on bank deposit rates.
Short-term investments represent fixed term deposit with temporary short-term liquidity
with 0.250 per cent to 0.375 per cent interest rate per annum.
Interest income from deposits in banks and placements reported in the statement of
comprehensive income totaled P550,373 and P268,472 for the years ended December
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
5. LEASE RECEIVABLES, NET
This account represents total amounts to be collected from the lessees which are due in
installments on the lease agreement. The finance leases arising from conversion of
repossessed vessels were also included.
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Finance lease receivables
Residual value of leased assets
Deferred finance lease receivable
Net investment in finance lease receivables
Operating lease receivable
Allowance for credit losses
Lease receivables, net
Current
Non-current

2020
1,387,980,722
422,391,571
(211,078,638)
1,599,293,655
912,365
1,600,206,020
(35,913,259)
1,564,292,761

2019
1,545,014,590
388,377,534
(242,669,080)
1,690,723,044
912,365
1,691,635,409
(33,353,513)
1,658,281,896

625,436,157
552,921,672
938,856,604 1,105,360,224
1,564,292,761 1,658,281,896

An analysis of DBPLC‟s finance lease receivables as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is
shown below:

Maturity of gross investment in:
Within one year
Beyond one year but not beyond five years
Beyond five years
Residual value of leased assets
Within one year
Beyond one year but not beyond five years
Beyond five years

Deferred finance lease revenue
Within one year
Beyond one year but not beyond five years
Beyond five years

Gross finance lease receivable
Deferred finance lease revenue
Net investment in finance lease receivables

2020

2019

583,101,343
636,435,403
168,443,976
1,387,980,722

566,982,421
865,391,022
112,641,147
1,545,014,590

160,437,039
226,948,248
35,006,284
422,391,571

108,027,561
236,435,729
43,914,244
388,377,534

93,801,488
113,647,881
3,629,269
211,078,638

97,987,060
133,717,152
10,964,868
242,669,080

1,810,372,293
(211,078,638)
1,599,293,655

1,933,392,124
(242,669,080)
1,690,723,044

The residual value of leased assets represents the estimated proceeds from the disposal
of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, which approximates the amount of the
lease deposit paid by the lessee at the inception of the lease. At the end of the lease
term, the residual value of the leased asset is generally applied against the lease deposit
of the lessee. The residual value of the leased asset is presented as part of the Finance
Lease Receivables in the statement of financial position.
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Summary analysis of DBPLC‟s net investment in finance lease receivables follows:

Due within one year
Due beyond one year but not beyond five years
Beyond five years

2020
649,736,894
749,735,771
199,820,990
1,599,293,655

2019
577,022,922
968,109,599
145,590,523
1,690,723,044

Past due finance lease receivables amounted to P59,136,582 and P42,125,863 as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
In 2019, the Board of Directors approved the write-off of certain finance lease
receivables amounting to P5,883,471.

6.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST, NET

This account consists of the following:
Loans receivable – others
Unearned revenue/income
Allowance for credit losses
Other receivables:
Interest receivable
Accounts receivable
Car loan receivable
Inter-agency receivables
Allowance for credit losses
TOTAL

2020
1,673,804,982
(218,235,624)
1,455,569,358
(92,073,230)
1,363,496,128

2019
1,856,475,023
(252,696,690)
1,603,778,333
(90,692,985)
1,513,085,348

16,240,880
10,334,945
1,548,149
481,895
28,605,869
(12,873,850)
15,732,019
1,379,228,147

6,069,927
9,930,989
2,423,749
340,704
18,765,369
(12,591,492)
6,173,877
1,519,259,225

2020
731,933,930
(81,933,346)
650,000,584
481,895
(227,820)
254,075
10,334,945
(9,835,882)
499,063

2019
700,898,844
(78,776,239)
622,122,605
340,704
(221,245)
119,459
9,930,989
(9,655,084)
275,905

Current portion consists of:
Loans receivable – others
Allowance for credit losses
Inter-agency receivables
Allowance for credit losses
Accounts receivables
Allowance for credit losses
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Interest receivable
Allowance for credit losses
Car loan receivable
Allowance for credit losses
TOTAL

2020
16,240,880
(2,686,949)
13,553,931
830,799
(123,199)
707,600
665,015,253

2019
6,069,927
(2,591,964)
3,477,963
1,390,799
(123,199)
1,267,600
627,263,532

2020
723,635,428
(10,139,884)
713,495,544
717,350
714,212,894

2019
902,879,489
(11,916,746)
890,962,743
1,032,950
891,995,693

Non-current portion consists of:
Loans receivable – others
Allowance for credit losses
Car loan receivable
TOTAL

The allowance for impairment is computed based on the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
(BSP) basic guidelines in setting up of Allowance for Credit Losses.
DBPLC, being a financial institution with simple operation applied the guidelines of BSP
Circular 1011 in estimating its provision for credit losses.
Loans Receivables – Others
This account represents total amounts to be collected from the borrowers under
Amortized Commercial Loan, Receivable Financing/Discounting and Short-Term Loan
facility. The breakdown of loans receivable-others as of December 31, 2020 and 2019
are as follows:
Loans receivable – others
Unearned revenue/income
Net investment in loans receivable - others
Allowance for impairment
Loans receivable – others, net

Maturity of gross investment in:
Within one year
Beyond one year but not beyond five years
Beyond five years

2020
1,673,804,982
(218,235,624)
1,455,569,358
(92,073,230)
1,363,496,128

2019
1,856,475,023
(252,696,690)
1,603,778,333
(90,692,985)
1,513,085,348

2020

2019

863,326,912
706,539,575
103,938,495
1,673,804,982

817,282,677
1,036,688,024
2,504,322
1,856,475,023
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2020
Unearned revenue/income
Within one year
Beyond one year but not beyond five years
Beyond five years

131,392,982
85,499,026
1,343,616
218,235,624
2020

Allowance for impairment
Within one year
Beyond one year but not beyond five years
Beyond five years

81,933,346
8,508,551
1,631,333
92,073,230

2019
116,383,834
136,179,939
132,917
252,696,690
2019
78,776,239
11,893,031
23,715
90,692,985

Summary analysis of DBPLC‟s net investment in loans receivables – others follows:

Due within one year
Due beyond one year but not beyond five
years
Beyond five years

2020
731,933,930

2019
700,898,843

621,040,549
102,594,879
1,455,569,358

900,508,085
2,371,405
1,603,778,333

Past due loans and receivables financed amounted to P161,692,255.93 and
P155,755,773 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Income on lease and loan receivables
Lease and interest income on finance lease receivables and loans receivable – others
are presented in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:
Interest Income on Loans (Note 18)
Lease Income (Note 19)
Total

2020
106,121,974
94,863,480
200,985,454

2019
118,762,575
105,954,987
224,717,562

BSP Reporting
Details of finance lease receivable and loans receivable – others as to industry sector
and collateral type at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
a)

As to industry

Services
Manufacturing
Real Estate
Public Sector
Mining and Quarrying
Wholesale and retail trade
Total

2020
1,319,358,208
718,961,564
441,495,125
322,950,933
84,167,492
40,855,567
2,927,788,889

2019
1,406,886,425
682,322,532
549,423,479
381,576,286
67,896,120
83,262,402
3,171,367,244
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b)

As to collateral

Secured
Property under finance lease
Chattel mortgage
Unsecured
Total

2020

2019

1,566,852,507
853,248,415
507,687,967
2,927,788,889

1,658,281,897
838,271,297
674,814,050
3,171,367,244

As of December 31, 2020, and 2019, the non-performing loans (NPLs) fully-covered by
allowance for credit losses amounted to P1,404,000.
7.

INVENTORIES

Inventories represent amount of office supplies on hand as of December 31, 2020 and
2019. Inventories recognized as expense for the years 2020 and 2019 amount to
P315,160 and P602,555, respectively, as disclosed in Note 21.
8.

OTHER ASSETS

This account consists of the following:

Foreclosed property/assets
Prepayments
Refundable deposits

Current
Non-current

2020
9,982,664
1,205,072
1,204,369
12,392,105

2019
12,438,041
118,604
0
12,556,645

1,205,072
11,187,033
12,392,105

118,604
12,438,041
12,556,645

Foreclosed Assets/Properties
Other non-current assets include chattel or personal properties acquired through
repossession or foreclosure that are available for sale or re-lease or charter.
The movement of chattel or personal properties are as follows:
2020
Particulars
Cost
Beginning balance
Ending balance
Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning balance
Depreciation
Ending balance

MV Gloria 1

Various Heavy
Equipment

Total

8,108,333
8,108,333

15,172,140
15,172,140

23,280,473
23,280,473

134,710
231,138
365,848

0
1,003,336
1,003,336

134,710
1,234,474
1,369,184
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2020
Particulars
Accumulated Impairment
Beginning balance
Impairment
Ending balance
Net Book Value

MV Gloria 1

Various Heavy
Equipment

3,618,011
1,220,903
4,838,914
2,903,571

Total

7,089,711
0
7,089,711
7,079,093

10,707,722
1,220,903
11,928,625
9,982,664

2019
Particulars
Cost
Beginning balance
Additions/Adjustments
Ending balance
Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning balance
Additions/Adjustments
Depreciation
Ending balance
Accumulated Impairment
Beginning balance
Additions/Adjustments
Impairment
Ending balance
Net Book Value

DLC Roro 3

MV Gloria
1

Various
Heavy
Equipment

30,724,183
(30,724,183)
0

0
8,108,333
8,108,333

0
15,172,140
15,172,140

30,724,183
(7,443,710)
23,280,473

10,286,268
(11,128,334)
842,066
0

0
0
134,710
134,710

0
0
0
0

10,286,268
(11,128,334)
976,776
134,710

8,059,535
(10,366,797)
2,307,262
0
0

0
3,618,011
0
3,618,011
4,355,612

0
7,089,711
0
7,089,711
8,082,429

Total

8,059,535
340,925
2,307,262
10,707,722
12,438,041

Depreciation charges were recognized for 2020 and 2019 amounting to P1,234,474 and
P976,776, respectively and were presented under Non-Cash Expenses in Note 21.
In 2020, impairment loss on MV Gloria 1 was recognized amounted to P1,220,903 and
impairment loss on DLC Roro 3 recognized in 2019 amounted to P2,307,262.
In 2019, DLC Roro 3 was converted to Finance Lease. Various heavy equipment of
certain finance lease client was voluntarily surrendered to DBPLC and an extra-judicial
foreclosure proceeding was conducted against a certain amortised commercial loan
client. A sheriff certificate of sale for MV Gloria 1 was then awarded to the Corporation.
During the year, the Corporation has not classified a foreclosed property as Non-current
asset held-for-sale due to the lack of existence of a ready buyer and the Corporation
does not expect the sale of these properties to be completed within 12 months from the
balance sheet date.
Prepayments consist of prepaid insurance, prepaid taxes and other prepaid expenses.
Excess income tax payment as of December 31, 2020 amounted to P1,025,920.
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Refundable deposits for the year 2020 pertain to the three months security deposit on
lease of office space refundable at the end of the lease term.

9.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The composition and movement in this account are as follows:
2020
Particulars

Information
Technology
Equipment

Office
Equipment

Furniture
and
Fixtures

2,702,181

Transportation
Equipment

Building

Right-ofUse Asset

Total

Cost
Beginning balance

4,049,318

840,781

Additions/Adjustment

(671,572)

(154,848)

1,947,850

Ending balance

3,377,746

685,933

2,631,881

1,947,850

616,404

2,286,443

2,100,000

0

11,640,130

25,759,023

24,862,303

2,100,000

25,759,023

36,502,433

635,184

261,081

0

6,498,539

0

0

0

250,438

68,108

830,936

(70,300)

Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning balance

2,699,427

Additions/Adjustment

(631,893)

(167,191)

(65,934)

Depreciation

363,717

55,390

113,201

(865,018)

Ending balance

2,431,251

504,603

2,333,710

885,622

329,189

830,936

7,315,311

Net Book Value

946,495

181,330

298,171

1,062,228

1,770,811

24,928,087

29,187,122

1,681,790

2019
Particulars

Information
Technology
Equipment

Cost
Beginning balance
3,219,874
Additions/Adjustment
829,444
Ending balance
4,049,318
Accumulated Depreciation
2,410,869
Beginning balance
Additions/Adjustment
(12,653)
Depreciation
301,211
Ending balance
2,699,427
Net Book Value
1,349,891

Office
Equipment

Furniture
and
Fixtures

Transportation
Equipment

Building

871,237
(30,456)
840,781

2,761,803
(59,622)
2,702,181

1,097,850
850,000
1,947,850

2,100,000
0
2,100,000

563,389
(18,320)
71,335
616,404
224,377

2,191,323
(36,491)
131,611
2,286,443
415,738

494,032
0
141,152
635,184
1,312,666

192,973
0
68,108
261,081
1,838,919

Total

10,050,764
1,589,366
11,640,130
5,852,586
(67,464)
713,417
6,498,539
5,141,591

Depreciation charges were recognized for 2020 and 2019 amounting to P1,681,790 and
P713,417, respectively and were presented under Non-cash expenses in Note 21.
No property, plant and equipment and any portion thereof is held as collateral.
The right of use asset amounting to P25,759,023 is equivalent to the present value of
lease payments over the period of five years.
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10.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The composition and movement of this account are as follows:
2020
Cost
Beginning balance
Additions
Ending balance
Accumulated Amortization
Beginning balance
Amortization for the year (Note 21)
Ending balance
Book Value

2019

2,201,238
80,000
2,281,238

2,082,862
118,376
2,201,238

266,036
147,694
413,730
1,867,508

153,463
112,573
266,036
1,935,202

Leasing and Financial Management System (LFMS) under Intangible Assets amounting
to P1,520,000 has not been in operation as of December 31, 2020.
11.

ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Reconciliation of the allowance for credit and impairment losses:
2020
Allowance for Credit Losses
Financial assets at amortised cost
Lease receivables
Impairment Losses
Other non-current assets
Provisions for credit losses for the year
Impairment losses
Accounts charged-off/other adjustments
At December 31

2019

103,284,477
33,353,513

99,530,895
48,851,263

10,707,722
147,345,712
4,222,349
1,220,903
0
152,788,964

8,059,535
156,441,693
4,847,028
2,307,262
(16,250,271)
147,345,712

Allocations of allowance for credit and impairment losses are as follows:
Allowance for Credit Losses
Financial assets at amortised cost
Lease receivables
Impairment Losses
Other non-current assets
At December 31

2020

2019

104,947,080
35,913,259

103,284,477
33,353,513

11,928,625
152,788,964

10,707,722
147,345,712
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An analysis of DBPLC‟s Allowance for Credit and Impairment Losses as of December
31, 2020 and 2019 is shown below:
2020
At January
1, 2020
Allowance for Credit losses
Financial assets at
amortised cost
Lease receivables
Impairment Losses
Other non-current assets

Provision for
the year

Accounts
charged
off/other
adjustments

At
December
31, 2020

103,284,477

1,662,603

0 104,947,080

33,353,513
0
10,707,722
147,345,712

2,559,746
0
1,220,903
5,443,252

0

35,913,259
0
0
11,928,625
0 152,788,964

2019
Provision for
the year

Accounts
charged
off/other
adjustments

99,530,895

3,753,582

0

48,851,263
0
8,059,535
156,441,693

1,093,446
0
2,307,262
7,154,290

At January
1, 2019
Allowance for Credit losses
Financial assets at
amortised cost
Lease receivables
Impairment Losses
Other non-current assets

At
December
31, 2019

103,284,477

(16,591,196) 33,353,513
0
0
340,925
10,707,722
(16,250,271) 147,345,712

Breakdown of Allowance for Credit Losses of Lease Receivables are as follows:
2020
Finance lease receivables
Operating lease receivable
At December 31

35,000,894
912,365
35,913,259

2019
32,441,148
912,365
33,353,513

Breakdown of Allowance for Credit Losses of Financial assets at amortised cost are as
follows:

Loans receivable – others
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Inter-agency receivables
Car loan receivable
At December 31

2020
92,073,230
9,835,882
2,686,949
227,820
123,199
104,947,080

2019
90,692,985
9,655,084
2,591,964
221,245
123,199
103,284,477
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12.

PAYABLES

This account consists of the following:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses payable
Due to officers and employees

2020
10,953,786
7,184,393
3,323,239
21,461,418

2019
As restated
24,130,241
9,682,055
1,502,041
35,314,337

Accounts payable pertains to advances made by clients for payment of chattel mortgage
registration and other fees, payable to suppliers and unreleased checks as of year-end.
Breakdown of Accounts payable as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
Accounts payable – advances from clients
Accounts payable – unreleased checks
Accounts payable – supplier of goods and services

2020
7,962,455
2,697,867
293,464
10,953,786

2019
6,207,839
17,212,866
709,536
24,130,241

Breakdown of Accrued expenses payable as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as
follows:

Accrued gross receipts tax
Retirement pay
Audit fees
Accrued operating expenses
Accrued salaries

2020
3,289,493
1,793,213
1,632,000
469,687
0
7,184,393

2019
As restated
2,709,517
859,619
0
1,017,976
5,094,943
9,682,055

Accrued salaries in 2019 pertains to the adjustment on salaries and other benefits for the
years 2017-2019 in compliance with GCG Memorandum Circular No. 2017-03 dated
August 24, 2017. The Modified Salary Schedule was implemented in January 2020.
Due to officers and employees pertains to the monetary value of sick leave and vacation
leave credits of employees remaining at the end of the reporting period.
13.

INTER-AGENCY PAYABLES

This account consists of payables to the following:
2020
BIR – Other Taxes
SSS & ECC
PHIC

5,119,089
67,181
23,073

2019
As restated
4,951,539
77,986
23,900
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2020
PAG-IBIG
BIR – Income tax (Note 22)

16,126
0
5,225,469

2019
As restated
14,573
2,608,650
7,676,648

All the above payables except income tax were remitted to the agencies concerned in
January 2021.
14.

LOANS PAYABLE

This account represents amount drawn from the Corporation‟s loan facilities with Bank of
the Philippine Islands, Philippine National Bank, BDO Unibank, Inc., Eastwest Banking
Corporation, Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company and Security Bank Corporation. The
earliest loans were incurred in 2010-2012 to finance the acquisition of leased vessels.
New borrowings in 2020 and 2019 amounted to P1.18 billion and P1.24 billion,
respectively, and were used principally to acquire assets subject of the leases and loans
to clients.
Details of this account are as follows:

Accrued interest on borrowings
Total

2020
2019
700,000,000
385,000,000
426,039,216
370,000,000
334,500,000
307,500,000
325,864,834
554,065,000
100,000,000
0
100,000,000
200,000,000
1,986,404,050 1,816,565,000
5,117,010
10,800,145
1,991,521,060 1,827,365,145

Current
Non-current

1,476,832,334 1,225,115,145
514,688,726
602,250,000

Philippine National Bank
BDO Unibank, Inc.
Eastwest Banking Corporation
Bank of the Philippine Islands
Security Bank Corporation
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company

Interest rates on loans payable range from 4.40 per cent to 6.50 percent and 4.06 per
cent to 6.00 per cent in 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Interest expense on borrowings amounted to P107,116,276 and P97,968,143 for the
years ending December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Total interest expense is presented in the statements of comprehensive income as
financial expenses.
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15.

LEASE LIABILITY

The movement of lease liability is as follows:
2020
At January 1
Additions
Payments
At December 31
Current
Non-Current

25,759,023
(1,352,395)
24,406,628
4,126,546
20,280,082
2020

Maturity of lease liability in:
Within one year
Beyond one year but not beyond five years

2019

4,126,546
20,280,082
24,406,628

0
0
0
0
0
2019
0
0
0

Total cash outflow for lease liability in 2020 was P1,352,395 which included three
months advance rent on office space and one month advance rent on parking and dues.
16.

TRUST LIABILITIES

This account consists of the following:
Customers‟ deposit payable
Guaranty/Security deposit payable

2020
423,308,778
247,000
423,555,778

2019
388,916,192
247,000
389,163,192

Current
Non-Current

166,763,895
256,791,883

108,274,561
280,888,631

Customers’ Deposit Payable
This account consists of guaranty deposits on finance leases ranging in amount from
five per cent to twenty per cent of the cost attributable to each vessel/equipment.
The total project cost for each leased asset is based on the total purchase price,
importation cost or appraised value.
Breakdown of deposit on finance leases by contractual settlement dates as of December
31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

Due within one year
Due beyond one year

2020
166,516,895
256,791,883
423,308,778

2019
108,027,561
280,888,631
388,916,192
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Breakdown of deposit on finance leases as to industry as of December 31, 2020 and
2019 is as follows:

Manufacturing Company
Construction Company
Maritime Industry
Transportation Company
Mining and Quarrying Company
Educational Institution
Trading and Commercial Company
Administrative and Support Services Company

17.

2020
191,188,185
114,706,221
31,457,070
27,180,907
23,835,102
13,203,995
11,430,698
10,306,600
423,308,778

2019
165,889,687
109,668,778
31,457,070
43,687,680
3,271,684
13,203,995
11,430,698
10,306,600
388,916,192

STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

Share Capital
DBP Leasing Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of DBP, has an authorized capital
stock of P1.5 billion, which is divided into 10 million common shares of stock and five
million preferred shares of stock with total par values of P 1 billion and P 500 million,
respectively. Out of the authorized capital stock of DBPLC, 10 million common shares
and 1.32 million preferred shares with total par values P1.0 billion and P132 million,
respectively, have been subscribed. The preferred shares, which are not convertible into
common shares, were subscribed under the terms and conditions of the Subscription
Agreement dated May 30, 2012, for purposes of funding DBPLC‟s acquisition of the
Insular Life Building in Cebu City. The building was then leased to and used as office
site of Region VII of the Department of Labor and Employment (DOLE).
Retained Earnings (Deficit)
Dividend Declaration
In compliance with Republic Act No. 7656 requiring the declaration of dividends by
Government-Owned and/or Controlled Corporations, DBPLC is required to declare and
remit at least 50 per cent of its annual net earnings.
For CY 2019, the Board of Directors (BOD) of DBPLC, in its April 16, 2020 regular
meeting, approved the declaration of cash dividends to the National Government (NG)
amounting to P17.72 million and remitted to the Bureau of Treasury (BTr) on April 20,
2020. Meantime, for CY 2018, the BOD, in its May 10, 2019 regular meeting, approved
the declaration of cash dividends to the NG amounting to P25.26 million and remitted to
the BTr on May 14, 2019.
Prior Period Adjustments
The Corporation has identified significant prior period adjustments that require representation of certain balances in the statements of financial position, statement of
comprehensive income and statement and statement of changes in equity of CY 2020
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and 2019. Accordingly, these significant prior period errors have been corrected in the
financial statements in accordance with PAS 8 (Correction of Prior Period Error).
The impact of these changes has required the restatement of the following financial line
items as of December 31, 2019.

Deferred Tax Asset
Accrued Expenses Payable
Inter-agency Payable
Income Tax Expense
Net Income for the year
Retained Earnings Deficit

As
previously
stated
0
35,700,947
4,441,449
15,093,093
44,358,279
(85,393,126)

Adjustment
44,203,713
(386,610)
3,235,199
2,728,794
(2,728,794)
41,355,124

As restated
44,203,713
35,314,337
7,676,648
17,821,887
41,629,485
(44,038,002)

Changes on the balance of Retained Earnings as at January 1, 2019 are as follows:
Particulars
Reversal of accrued performance bonus in 2018
2017 Tax Deficiency
Deferred Tax Asset on:
Allowance for Impairment
Lease Receivables
Financial Assets at amortized cost
Foreclosed assets/properties
Total changes in Retained Earnings, January 1, 2019

Amount
386,610
(3,235,199)

14,655,379
29,859,268
2,417,860
44,083,918

During the year, Deferred Tax Assets were recognized to account for taxable and
deductible temporary differences for the year 2019 and prior years. A corresponding
asset account, expense account and Retained Earnings account were debited and
credited respectively to account for the said reversal.
There was also a settlement of BIR assessment on taxable year 2017 amounting to
P3,235,199 paid in January 2021. The transaction was recorded as a debit to the
beginning balance of Retained Earnings account and a credit to BIR – Other Taxes.
Moreover, in 2019, a Notice of Commission Proper (CP) en banc resolution on March
08, 2018 pertaining to the payment of legal consultancy services for the years 2007 and
2009 was received by the Corporation informing that the decision of the CP denying the
motion for reconsideration of COA Decision No. 2017-047 dated February 28, 2017 has
become final and executory. The Commission instructed the Corporation to immediately
require refund of fees amounting to P1,000,000 from the persons liable. A corresponding
receivable and Retained Earnings accounts were debited and credited respectively to
account for the said obligation.
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18.

INTEREST INCOME

Interest income consists of the following:
Loans receivable – others
Cash and cash equivalents

19.

2020
106,121,974
550,373
106,672,347

2019
118,762,575
268,472
119,031,047

2020
93,812,804
1,050,676
94,863,480

2019
105,954,987
0
105,954,987

2020
1,566,865
570,276
2,137,141

2019
3,332,517
0
3,332,517

LEASE INCOME

Lease income consists of the following:

Finance lease
Operating lease

20.

MISCELLANEOUS INCOME

Miscellaneous Income consist of the following:

Other income
Processing/service fees and other charges

Other income pertains to penalties, surcharge and interest. Processing/service fees and
other charges consist of gross receipts tax on lease and interest income for the account
of the client.
21.

EXPENSES

This account represents Salaries and Other Personnel Expenses and other
administrative expenses incurred for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.
2020

2019

Personnel Services
Salaries and wages
Other compensation
Mid-year and year-end bonus
Transportation Allowance (TA)
Representation Allowance (RA)
Personnel economic relief allowance
Clothing allowance

18,408,435

12,697,943

2,997,456
936,119
936,119
665,000
150,000

3,082,629
2,434,731
2,434,731
710,000
180,000
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Cash gift
Other bonus and allowances

Personnel benefit contributions
SSS, ECC contributions
Philhealth contributions
Pag-ibig contributions

Other personnel benefits
Retirement gratuity

Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses
Taxes, duties and licenses
Rent/Lease expense
Litigation/Asset acquired expense
Auditing service
Insurance expenses
Directors‟ and committee members‟ fees
Communication expenses
Other professional service
General services
Travelling expenses- local
Office supplies expense
Utility expenses
Representation expenses
Training expenses
Internet subscription expenses
Advertising, promotional and marketing expense
Subscription expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Semi-expendable expenses
Fines, penalties and other charges
Miscellaneous expense

2020
135,500
2,604,848
8,425,042

2019
147,500
1,093,428
10,083,019

495,100
146,758
31,400
673,258

495,518
174,372
35,900
705,790

933,594
28,440,329

224,248
23,711,000

21,140,633
3,299,475
2,257,716
1,632,000
1,615,803
1,314,000
1,013,193
860,833
834,011
340,716
315,160
202,837
156,818
138,266
112,282
112,000
80,788
51,680
40,596
4,336
388,819
35,911,962
64,352,291

21,221,269
3,251,760
3,880,817
1,036,868
341,305
1,058,600
1,086,003
2,029,572
496,921
743,653
602,555
184,024
600,074
467,044
187,571
46,181
58,664
108,100
56,958
81,100
634,452
38,173,491
61,884,491

2020
135,041
27,150
0
0
0
226,628
388,819

2019
32,189
16,930
418,000
50,398
14,660
102,275
634,452

Miscellaneous expense composed of the following:
Membership fees and dues
Notarial fees
Corporate give away
GAD expenses
Periodicals and magazines
Other expenses

40

2020
Non-Cash expenses
Credit and impairment losses (Note 11)
Depreciation (Note 8 and 9)
Amortization (Note 10)

22.

2019

5,443,252
2,916,264
147,694
8,507,210

7,154,290
1,690,193
112,573
8,957,056

2020
10,607,928
(3,493,674)
7,114,254

2019
As restated
15,093,093
2,728,794
17,821,887

2020
23,696,318

2019
59,505,066

12,553,650
(1,352,395)
830,936
181,623
(550,373)
0
0
35,359,759
30%
10,607,928

4,928,126
0
0
88,596
(268,472)
(5,883,471)
(8,059,535)
50,310,310
30%
15,093,093

INCOME TAX EXPENSE`

The income tax expense consists of:

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense (income)

Details of current tax expense are as follows:

Financial income
Add (Deduct): Reconciling items
Non-deductible expenses
Advance rental
Depreciation
Interest in arbitrage
Interest income subject to final tax
Written-off receivables
Impairment loss
Taxable Income
Tax rate

Details of deferred tax expense (income) are as follows:
2020
Allowance for credit and impairment losses
Accrued expenses
Rental expense
Written-off receivables
Impairment loss

(1,632,976)
(2,017,136)
156,438
0
0
(3,493,674)

2019
(1,454,108)
0
0
1,756,041
2,417,861
2,728,794
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Details of deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 follows:

DTA - Credit and impairment losses
DTA - Accrued expenses
DTA - Rental expense

2020
45,836,689
2,017,136
(156,438)
47,697,387

2019
44,203,713
0
0
44,203,713

Income tax due as of December 31, 2019 amounts to P2,608,650, after deducting
creditable withholding taxes and quarterly income tax payments.
The Corporation is subject to minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) which is computed
at 2 per cent of gross income, as defined under the tax regulations, or to the RCIT,
whichever is higher. No MCIT was reported in 2020 and 2019.
In 2020 and 2019, the Corporation claimed itemized deduction on computing for its
income tax due.
Under the Philippine tax laws, the Corporation is also subject to percentage and other
taxes. Percentage and other taxes paid consist of gross receipts tax and documentary
stamp tax.

23.

CONTINGENCIES

Contingent Asset
In the ordinary course of business, there are pending litigations involving the Corporation
which are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements.
As of December 31, 2020, the following are the on-going litigations involving the
Corporation as a claimant:


A case filed by the Corporation as a complaint for the collection of sum of money
against a defaulted lessee consisting of the outstanding balance of the unpaid lease
rentals and outstanding fees incurred in the possession of property amounted to
P13,044,250.



A case where a Corporation is a claimant for a claim of the outstanding principal
balance including interest on loans amounted to P17,010,718 against a client who
filed for voluntary rehabilitation under Republic Act No. 10142 or the Financial
Rehabilitation and Insolvency Act of 2010

No income has been recognized during the financial year as the receipt of the claim is
not virtually certain.
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24.

SELECTED FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The following are some of the financial performance indicators of the Corporation:

Current ratio
Debt-to-equity ratio
Return on equity
Return on assets
Loans-to-assets
EBITDA Rate

25.

SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION
REGULATION 15-2010

2020
1.08:1
2.27:1
1.51%
0.46%
0.83:1
12.81%

REQUIRED

2019
(As restated)
0.93:1
2.08:1
3.94%
1.24%
0.95:1
15.74%

UNDER

REVENUE

In compliance with the requirements set forth by RR No. 15-2010, hereunder are the
information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.
DBPLC as a non-VAT entity, is subject to percentage tax and other taxes as well as
income taxes. Percentage and other taxes consist principally of gross receipts tax (GRT)
and documentary stamp tax (DST). DBPLC pays the corresponding GRT on all items
treated as gross income. DBPLC withheld corresponding taxes on payments of
compensation of employees, fees to directors and cost of purchase price to contractors
and suppliers of goods and services.
Below is the additional information required under the Revenue Regulations 15-2010.
a.

Amount of VAT output tax

Not Applicable

b.

Amount of VAT input tax
1. Beginning of the year
i.
VAT input tax
ii.
Deferred VAT input tax

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

2.

Current year's domestic purchases/payments for:
i.
Goods for resale/manufacture or further processing
ii.
Goods other than for resale of manufacture
iii. Capital goods subject to amortization
iv. Capital goods not subject to amortization
v.
Services lodged under cost of goods
vi. Services lodged under other accounts

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

3.

Claims for tax credit/refund and other adjustments; and

Not Applicable

4.

Balance at the end of the year
i.
VAT input tax
ii.
Deferred VAT input tax

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
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c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

h.

The landed cost of imports and the amount of customs duties
and tariff fees paid or accrued thereon;

Not Applicable

The amount of excise tax/es, classified per major product
category, i.e. tobacco products, alcohol products, automobiles,
minerals, oil and petroleum, etc. paid on
1. Locally produced excisable items, and
2. Imported excisable items.

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Documentary stamp tax (DST) on loan instruments, shares of
stock and other transactions subject thereto;
i.
DST on Finance Lease, Amortized Commercial Loan and
Rediscounting Facility
ii.
DST on Loans Payable
Total

4,044,711
11,809,459
15,854,170

All other taxes, local and national, including license and permit fees
lodged under the Taxes, duties and licenses account both under the
Maintenance and other operating expenses;
i.
Gross Receipts Tax
ii. Business permit
iii. Real property tax
iv License fee
vi Miscellaneous taxes
Total

8,999,871
477,941
4,402
12,625
3,440
9,498,279

The amount of withholding taxes categorized into
i.
Tax on compensation and benefits
ii. Creditable withholding tax/es
iii. Final withholding tax/es

4,031,451
2,688,651
6,214,973

Amount/s of deficiency tax assessments, whether protested or not
Period covered

3,235,199
2017

Taxes paid in 2020 composed of:
Final withholding taxes
Documentary stamp tax
Gross receipts tax
Expanded withholding taxes
Compensation and benefits

3,730,220
4,044,711
8,999,871
1,845,289
3,613,036
22,233,127

Accrued gross receipts tax at the end of 2020 amounted to P3,289,493.
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26.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

DBPLC‟s related parties include Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP), key
management personnel and the retirement benefit fund as described in the succeeding
paragraphs.
The summary of the Corporation‟s transactions with its related parties in 2020 and 2019
and the related outstanding balances as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
a.

The Corporation maintains current, zero savings and option savings account with
Development Bank of the Philippines. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, current,
zero savings and option savings account maintained with DBP are included under
Cash and Cash Equivalents account in the statements of financial position (see
Note 4). These deposits generally earn interest at annual rates of 0.250 per cent to
0.375 per cent in 2020 and 2019. Interest income earned on these deposits in 2020
and 2019 are included as part of Interest Income under Income in the statements of
comprehensive income.
Cash in bank – local currency, current account
Time deposits – local currency

b.

2020
392,700,481
125,123,090
517,823,571

The Corporation leases its office premises and warehouse, training rooms/complex
and service vehicles from DBP. The term of the lease is one year, renewable for
such period under such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon with DBP.
Related rent expense, power, light and water expenses, training and travelling
expenses incurred in 2020 and 2019 is presented as part of Maintenance and Other
Operating Expenses account under Expenses in the statements of comprehensive
income.
2020
Rental Expenses
Office premises
Warehouse
Electricity
Training expenses

3,239,280
12,480
128,195
0
3,379,955
2020

Accrued Expenses Payable
Electricity
Telephone line

c.

2019
85,374,130
20,315,955
105,690,085

41,105
2,456
43,561

2019
3,239,280
12,480
165,388
50,200
3,467,348
2019
15,824
2,456
18,280

Compensation of key management personnel (covering officer positions starting
from Vice president and up) is included as part of Salaries and other personnelrelated expenses under Expenses in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.
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Remuneration of key management personnel for the years 2020 and 2019 are as
follows:
2020
9,715,758
867,756
10,583,514

Short term benefits
Post-employment benefits

2019
6,957,484
224,248
7,181,732

The Corporation also granted car loan to officers with no interest. Outstanding loans
to officers are presented as Car Loan Receivables under Financial Assets at
Amortised Cost account (Note 6). Car loan receivable from one of the resigned
officers amounted to P123,196 are considered impaired and with 100 per cent
provision as of December 31, 2019.
Breakdown of Car Loan Receivable of existing officers are as follows:
2020
Car Loan Receivable
Current
Non-current

27.

2019

830,799
717,350
1,548,149

1,267,600
1,032,950
2,300,550

MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
2020
Due beyond
1 year

Due within 1 year

Due within 1
year

Total

2019 (Restated)
Due beyond 1
year

Total

Financial assets
Cash

517,963,571

Finance lease
625,436,157
receivables
Financial assets
665,015,253
at amortized cost
Non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipment
0

105,730,085

0

105,730,085

552,921,672

1,105,360,224

1,658,281,896

714,212,894

1,379,228,147

627,263,532

891,995,693

1,519,259,225

29,187,122

29,187,122

0

5,141,591

5,141,591

1,867,508

1,867,508

0

1,935,202

1,935,202

259,743

0

259,743

372,963

0

372,963

0

47,697,387

47,697,387

0

44,203,713

44,203,713

Deferred Tax Assets
Other assets

517,963,571
1,564,292,761

0

Intangible assets
Inventories

0
938,856,604

1,205,072

11,187,033

12,392,105

118,604

12,438,041

12,556,645

1,809,879,796

1,743,008,548

3,552,888,344

1,286,406,856

2,061,074,464

3,347,481,320

Due within 1
year

2020
Due beyond
1 year

Total

Due within 1
year

2019 (Restated)
Due beyond
1 year

Loans payable

1,476,832,334

514,688,726

1,991,521,060

1,225,115,145

602,250,000

1,827,365,145

Trust liabilities

166,763,895

256,791,883

423,555,778

108,274,561

280,888,631

389,163,192

4,126,546

20,280,082

24,406,628

0

0

0

21,461,418

0

21,461,418

35,314,337

0

35,314,337

0

0

0

0

0

0

Total

Financial liabilities

Lease liability
Payable
Non-financial liabilities
Inter-agency payables

Asset – Liability Gap

5,225,469

0

5,225,469

7,676,648

0

7,676,648

1,674,409,662

791,760,691

2,466,170,353

1,376,380,691

883,138,631

2,259,519,322

135,470,133

951,247,857

1,086,717,991

1,177,935,833

1,087,961,998

(89,973,835)
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28.

RISK MANAGEMENT

DBPLC has 25 regular employees, one probationary employee and four out-sourced
service personnel (drivers and messengers). With limited human resources, it organizes
its activities to manage uncertainty and threats in order to evaluate and handle first
possible risk with greatest loss and greatest probability of occurring while those risks
with lower probability of occurrence and lower loss are handled in descending order.
The Management Committee (ManCom) meets at least twice a month to review
performance, business plans, deliberate and act on matters requiring approvals or
resolutions under its authority, including credit/lease proposals. The ManCom consists of
the President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Vice President (VP) for Finance, VP
for Operations Group, Assistant Vice President (AVP) – Strategic Planning Officer, AVP
for Accounts Management Group – Team 1, Legal Officer IV, Head of Credit Review and
Evaluation Group (CREG) and Compliance/Risk Officer. DBPLC is exposed to various
forms of risks. These risks can be grouped into credit, liquidity, operational, market risks
and legal risks. In managing these risks, the approach is not always risk minimization
but managing risks to make an optional contribution to company revenues. DBPLC, in
accordance with DBP Risk Management, submits monthly reports and said risks are
evaluated and consolidated with those from parent.
Market and credit risks management are carried out through policies approved by the
ManCom, the Credit Committee (Crecom) and other board level committee such as the
Risk and Governance Committee, Audit Committee, among others, and the Board of
Directors.
Impact of COVID-19
DBPLC has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating
to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets. In
developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global
economic conditions because of this pandemic, DBPLC, as at the date of approval of
these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information and
related information, and economic forecasts. The Corporation expects to recover the
carrying amount of these assets and will continue to closely monitor any material
changes to future economic conditions.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.
DBPLC is naturally exposed to credit risk due to the nature of its business. Credit
exposures arise principally when default in lease or loan occurs. A counterparty default
risk has to be evaluated thoroughly in order to avoid financial loss.
a) Credit Risk Management
DBPLC‟s credit evaluation reports and proposals are prepared independently by the
CREG and are endorsed by Senior Management to the approving bodies. The
Corporation has three levels of authority for the approval of credit applications to obtain
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financing products from DBPLC depending on the threshold principal amount. The
Subcredit Committee (Subcrecom) - composed of the President and CEO, the Head of
the CREG and the Head of the appropriate team (Team 1 or Team 2) of the AMG is
empowered to approve applications with net amount of P25 Million and below subject to
Board notation. On the other hand, the Crecom (a board level committee) has authority
to approve application with amounts above P25 Million to P100 Million, subject to Board
notation. Thirdly, the Governing Board holds the authority to approve a credit application
for a principal amount of more than P100 Million.
Credit evaluation and background checking as well as financial evaluation and projection
are thoroughly conducted before a prospective account is recommended for approval.
Credit and business track records, ownership and financial capacity are vital factors in
evaluating the viability of an account.
b) Collateral
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk
of the obligor.
Collateral comes in the form of financial and non-financial assets. The main types of
collaterals are real estate properties, chattel/movable assets and evidence of receivable
from customers.
The following table shows the breakdown of receivables as to collateral:
2020
Secured
Property under finance lease
Chattel mortgage
Unsecured
Total

2019

1,566,852,507 1,658,281,897
853,248,415
838,271,297
507,687,967
674,814,050
2,927,788,889 3,171,367,244

c) Impairment assessment
The Corporation recognizes provision for probable losses based on the Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas (BSP) guidelines in setting up of allowances applicable for financial
institutions with simple operations as provided in BSP Circular 1011.
d) Maximum exposure credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements
2020

Financial assets:
Cash
Finance Lease
Receivables
Loans Receivables –
Others
Total

2019

Carrying
Amount

Maximum
Exposure

Carrying
Amount

Maximum
Exposure

517,963,571

517,963,571

105,730,085

105,730,085

1,599,293,665

1,599,293,665

1,658,281,896

1,658,281,896

1,455,569,358

1,455,569,358

1,513,085,348

1,513,085,348

3,572,826,584

3,572,826,594

3,277,097,329

3,277,097,329
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e) Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
As of December 31, 2020
Cash
Bank and Other financial institutions
Services
Manufacturing
Real Estate
Public Sector
Wholesale and retail trade
Mining and Quarrying
Total

517,823,571
0
0
0
0
0
0
517,823,571

Finance Lease
Receivables
0
493,262,074
551,832,274
367,784,890
71,726,060
37,271,798
77,416,559
1,599,293,655

Loans Receivable
- Others
0
845,738,677
172,460,334
163,556,316
254,488,790
11,964,890
7,360,351
1,455,569,358

Finance Lease
Receivables
0
565,108,674
491,205,344
415,457,751
79,117,033
51,508,299
55,884,795
1,658,281,896

Loans ReceivableOthers
0
841,777,751
191,117,188
133,965,728
302,459,253
31,754,103
12,011,325
1,513,085,348

As of December 31, 2019
Cash
Bank and Other financial institutions
Services
Manufacturing
Real Estate
Public Sector
Wholesale and retail trade
Mining and Quarrying
Total

f)

105,730,085
0
0
0
0
0
0
105,730,085

Credit Quality of Financial Assets

The credit quality of financial assets, net of unearned lease and interest income but
gross of allowance for credit losses is as follows:
As of December 31, 2020
Cash
Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
Impaired
Total

517,963,571
0
0
517,963,571

Finance Lease
Receivables
1,543,770,502
0
55,523,153
1,599,293,655

Loans ReceivableOthers
1,298,730,482
0
156,838,876
1,455,569,358

Finance Lease
Receivables
1,648,597,181
0
42,125,863
1,690,723,044

Loans ReceivableOthers
1,454,461,303
0
149,317,030
1,603,778,333

As of December 31, 2019
Cash
Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
Impaired
Total

105,690,085
0
0
105,730,085
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Neither past due nor impaired
Lease and loan receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are due from
accounts that have appropriate and strong credit history, with minimal account defaults
and whose receivable are fully recoverable based on past experiences.
Past due but not impaired
Past due lease and loans receivables are not considered impaired, unless other
information is available to the contrary. Collateralized past due loans are not considered
impaired when cash flows that may result from foreclosure of the related collateral are
higher that the carrying amount of the lease/loan.
Impaired
Impaired lease and loans receivables include accounts which are individually and
collectively assessed for impairment. The total impairment provision of lease and loan
receivables represented provision for individually and collectively impaired lease and
loan receivables. Further information on impairment of lease and loan receivable is
provided in Note 5, 6 and 11.
Detailed Credit Quality Analysis on Amortized Cost – Loans and Receivables
In view of PFRS 9 compliance, presented below are the Corporation‟s credit exposure of
receivable from borrowers and its corresponding staging analysis:
Finance Lease Receivables

Large Enterprises (L)
Medium Enterprises (M)
Small Enterprises (S)
Micro Enterprises (Mi)
National Government Units
Gross Lease Receivables

Stage 1
1,295,078,016
167,920,025
9,046,401
0
71,726,060
1,543,770,502

Gross Carrying Amount
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
0
55,523,153 1,350,601,169
167,920,025
0
0
9,046,401
0
0
0
0
0
71,726,060
0
0
0
55,523,153 1,599,293,655

Movements in Gross Carrying Amounts:
Stage 1
January 1, 2020
New assets originated or purchased
Assets derecognized or repaid
(excluding write-offs)
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Amounts written-off
December 31, 2020

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

1,651,121,073

0

39,601,971

1,690,723,044

(91,429,389)
0
0
(15,921,182)
0
1,543,770,502

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
15,921,182
0
55,523,153

(91,429,389)
0
0
0
0
1,599,293,655
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Movements in the Allowance for Expected Credit Losses:
Stage 1
January 1, 2020
New assets originated or purchased
Assets derecognized or repaid
(excluding write-offs)
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Amounts written-off
December 31, 2020

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

12,640,160

0

19,800,988

32,441,148

2,469,747
0
0
(3,890,296)
0
11,219,611

0
0
0
0
0

90,000
0
0
3,890,296
0
23,781,284

2,559,747
0
0
0
0
35,000,895

Large Enterprises (L)
Medium Enterprises (M)
Small Enterprises (S)
Micro Enterprises (Mi)
National Government Units
Gross Loans Receivables

Stage 1
848,435,244
159,200,007
26,099,092
10,507,349
254,488,790
1,298,730,482

Gross Carrying Amount
Stage 2
Stage 3
0 149,664,405
0
0
0
7,174,471
0
0
0
0
0 156,838,876

Total
998,099,649
159,200,007
33,273,563
10,507,349
254,488,790
1,455,569,358

Large Enterprises (L)
Medium Enterprises (M)
Small Enterprises (S)
Micro Enterprises (Mi)
National Government Units
Interest Receivables

Stage 1
9340,092
3,644,538
569,301
0
0
13,553,931

Interest Receivables
Stage 2
Stage 3
0
2,591,964
0
0
0
94,985
0
0
0
0
0
2,686,949

Total
11,932,056
3,644,538
664,286
0
0
16,240,880

Loans Receivables – others

Movements in Gross Carrying Amounts:
Stage 1
January 1, 2020
New assets originated or purchased
Assets derecognized or repaid
(excluding write-offs)
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Amounts written-off
December 31, 2020

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

1,452,780,954

0

150,997,379

1,603,778,333

(154,050,472)
0
0
0
0
1,298,730,482

0
0
0
0
0
0

5,841,497
0
0
0
0
156,838,876

(148,208,975)
0
0
0
0
1,455,569,358

14,527,810

0

76,165,176

90,692,985

(1,540,505)
0
0
0
0
12,987,305

0
0
0
0
0
0

2,920,749
0
0
0
0
79,085,925

1,380,245
0
0
0
0
92,073,230

Movements in the Allowance for Expected Credit Losses:
Stage 1
January 1, 2020
New assets originated or purchased
Assets derecognized or repaid
(excluding write-offs)
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Amounts written-off
December 31, 2020

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

51

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its existing or future
obligations when they fall due under normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk,
management monitors future cash flows and liquidity on a weekly basis. This
incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows, available credit lines from banks
and short-term investments.
In order to strengthen the availability of its funding sources, DBPLC has opened credit
facilities with Bank of the Philippine Islands, BDO Unibank, Inc., East West Banking
Corporation, Security Bank, Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company and Philippine
National Bank.
Collection of lease rentals and loan amortizations is closely monitored to assure
promptness. Expenditures including liquidation of advances, are likewise well monitored.
All funds of DBPLC are deposited with DBP. Only a minimal amount is maintained under
its current account while the rest of the fund is in higher yielding deposit to maximize
earnings of funds.
The DBPLC Board, in its December 21, 2016 meeting, approved the prescribed limit on
Maximum Cumulative Outflow (MCO) and Interest Rate (IR) Gap in order to properly
monitor the cash inflows and outflows of the Corporation.
Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities.
As of December 31, 2020
Due within 1
year
Financial liabilities
Loans payable
Payables
Lease liability
Trust liabilities

1,476,832,334
21,461,418
4,126,546
166,763,895
1,669,184,193

Over 1 year to 3
years
420,700,980
0
10,252,189
175,998,719
606,951,888

Over 3
years

Total

93,987,746
0
10,027,893
80,793,164
184,808,803

1,991,521,060
21,461,418
24,406,628
423,555,778
2,460,944,884

Over 3
years

Total

238,750,000
0
138,048,300
376,795,300

1,827,365,145
35,314,337
389,163,192
2,251,842,674

As of December 31, 2019
Due within 1
year
Financial liabilities
Loans payable
Payables
Trust liabilities

1,225,115,145
35,314,337
108,274,561
1,368,704,043

Over 1 year to 3
years
363,500,000
0
142,840,331
506,340,331

Financial assets available to meet all of the liabilities include cash in bank and loans and
receivables. The Corporation would also be able to meet unexpected net cash outflows
by accessing additional funding sources.
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Operational Risk
This risk covers the risk of loss arising from fraud, inadequate or failed processes,
unauthorized activities, error, omission, inefficiency, systems failure or external event.
This risk may arise from loss or damage on the leased assets and loan collaterals as
well as third parties due to human error or natural/fortuitous events that will temporarily
or permanently disable the earning potential/capacity of the assets. Insurance on leased
assets and collaterals is required to assure recovery of loss.
Market Risk
Interest rates as basis for determining lease rentals and loan amortizations are closely
monitored and are determined in accordance with the Corporation’s Pricing Policy and
based on prevailing market rates in order to minimize the gap between cost of funds and
lending rates due to market volatility.

29.

APPROVAL FOR THE RELEASE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors of the DBP Leasing Corporation (DBPLC) has reviewed and
approved the release of the accompanying comparative financial statements and
accompanying notes to financial statements on February 26, 2021.
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PART II

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

OTHER ISSUES
Corona Virus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) Response Programs/Projects/Activities
Grant of mandatory grace period for payment of loans
1.
On March 11, 2020, the Director General of the World Health Organization
declared the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) a global pandemic. In line with this,
the President of the Philippines issued Proclamation No. 929, s. 2020 dated March 16,
2020, Declaring a State of Calamity Throughout the Philippines Due to Corona Virus
Disease 2019. Further, Republic Act (RA) No. 11469, the Bayanihan to Heal as One Act
was enacted on March 24, 2020, authorizing the President of the Philippines for a limited
period to exercise powers that are necessary and proper to carry out the declared
national policy and to implement various temporary emergency measures to respond to
crisis brought by the pandemic. Subsequently, RA No. 11494, the Bayanihan to Recover
as One Act was enacted on September 11, 2020 in view of the sustained COVID-19
response and recovery interventions by the government.
1.1

Under Section 4(aa) RA No. 11469, the President was given the power to:
Direct all banks, quasi-banks, financing companies, x x x, to implement a
minimum of thirty (30)-day grace period for the payment of all loans,
including but not limited to salary, personal, housing, and motor vehicle
loans, as well as credit card payments, falling due within the period of the
enhanced Community Quarantine without incurring interests, penalties,
fees, or other charges. X x x.

1.2
Pursuant thereto, the Department of Finance (DOF) issued the Implementing
Rules and Regulations (IRR) of Section 4(aa) of RA No. 11469 dated April 1, 2020, and
Rule III thereof states:
Section 3.01 Mandatory Grace Period. All Covered Institutions shall
implement a 30-day grace period for all loans with principal and/or interest
falling due within the ECQ Period without incurring interest on interest,
penalties, fees and other charges. The initial 30-day grace period shall
automatically be extended if the ECQ period is extended by the President
of the Republic of the Philippines pursuant to his emergency powers under
the Bayanihan to Heal as One Act.
Section 3.02 Non-application of interests, fees and charges to future
payments. All Covered Institutions shall not charge or apply interest on
interest, fees and charges during the 30-day grace period to future
payments/amortizations of the individuals, households, micro, small and
medium enterprises (MSMEs), and corporate borrowers.
Section 3.03. Prohibition on waivers. Covered Institutions are prohibited
from requiring their clients to waive the application of the provisions of the
“Bayanihan to Heal as One Act”, including among others, the mandatory
54

30-day grace period. No waiver previously executed by borrowers covering
payments falling due during the ECQ Period shall be valid. Nonetheless,
the grant of grace period by the above-mentioned Covered Institutions shall
not preclude the borrowers from paying their obligations as they fall due
during the period of ECQ should they so desire.
1.3
As a continuing COVID-19 response and recovery intervention, Section 4(uu) of
RA No. 11494, authorized the President to exercise the same powers on granting of
mandatory grace period for all loan payments, emphasizing additional conditions and
incentives, to wit:
Directing all banks, quasi-banks, financing companies, x x x, to implement
a one-time sixty (60) day grace period the payment of all existing current,
and outstanding loans falling due, or any part thereof, on or before 31
December 2020, x x x without incurring interest on interest, penalties, fees
or other charges and thereby extending the maturity of the said loans:
Provided, That all loans may be settled on staggered basis without interests
on interest, penalties and other charges until December 31, 2020 or as may
be agreed upon by the parties: Provided further, that nothing shall stop the
parties from mutually agreeing for a grace period longer than sixty (60)
days: Provided furthermore, That the banks and other non-bank financial
institutions (NBFIs) that agree to further loan term extensions or
restructuring pursuant to this subsection shall be entitled to regulatory
relief, as may be determined by the BSP, x x x: Provided finally, That the
loan term extensions or restructuring pursuant to this subsection shall be
exempt from documentary stamp taxes.
1.4
Rule III of the IRR of Section 4 (uu) of RA No. 11494, issued by the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) through its Memorandum No. 2020-074 dated September 8,
2020, basically reiterated those of the IRR for Section 4(aa) of RA No. 11469 issued by
the DOF, thus:
Section 3.01 Mandatory Grace Period. All Covered Institutions shall
implement a non-extendible, mandatory one-time sixty (60)-day grace
period for all existing, current and outstanding loans with principal and/or
interest, including amortizations, falling due on or before December 31,
2020 without incurring interest on interests, penalties, fees, or other
charges. The parties are not precluded from mutually agreeing to a grace
period longer than 60 days.
Section 3.02 Non-application of interests, fees and charges to future
payments. Covered institutions shall not charge or apply the foregone
interest on interests, penalties, fees and other charges during the
mandatory one-time 60-day period to future payments/amortizations of the
borrowers.
Section 3.03. Prohibition on waivers. Covered institutions are prohibited
from requiring their clients to waive the application of the mandatory onetime 60-day grace period under Section 4(uu) of the “Bayanihan to Recover
as One Act”. No waiver previously executed by borrowers covering
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payments falling due on or before December 31, 2020 shall be valid.
Nonetheless, the grant of the grace period by Covered Institutions under
Section 4(uu) of the “Bayanihan to Recover as One Act” shall not preclude
the borrowers from choosing not to avail of the said grace period and
paying their obligations as they fall due.
1.5
In line with the above provisions of law, DBPLC implemented the 30-day
mandatory grace period on 410 accounts involving P140.438 million in principal and
P32.800 million in interests falling due within the ECQ period in Metro Manila. Based on
the examination conducted, the audit team found that the granting of the mandatory
grace period is in accordance with the IRR of Section 4(aa) of RA No. 11469.
1.6
In addition to the mandatory grace period under the RA No. 11469, the Board of
Directors of DBPLC approved on June 26, 2021 the grant of the following payment
options to its clients:
a. Extend the maturity date of the lease/loan for the same number of months that
were not paid. Amount of monthly payments remains the same as per
amortisation schedule.
b. Keep the original maturity date of the lease/loan. The total unpaid amounts shall
be payable equally for at least 3 months, or up to the remaining term at the
maximum, without additional interest. Payments of the original amortisations
shall continue.
c. Keep the original maturity date of the lease/loan. New amortisation/monthly
payment shall be computed based on the outstanding principal balance and the
remaining term of the availment.
d. Keep the original maturity date of the lease/loan or extend the maturity date for a
maximum term of one year provided amount is not lower than the interest.
Succeeding amortisations should include principal and interest. Seasonal balloon
payments may be allowed.
1.7
DBPLC also implemented a non-extendible, mandatory one-time 60-day grace
period granted to only 13 loan accounts involving P16.458 million in principal and P1.756
million in interest falling due on or before December 31, 2020 without incurring interest
on interests, penalties, or other charges. The small number of loan accounts granted
with 60-day grace period was due to the additional payment options granted by DBPLC
and some clients opted to pay their loans during the period. Based on the audit
conducted, the audit team found that the granting of the mandatory grace period to
qualified clients of DBPLC is in accordance with the IRR of Section 4 (uu) of RA No.
11494 under BSP Memorandum.
1.8
The COVID-19 pandemic significantly affected the operation of most of DBPLC’s
clients. Despite the grant of mandatory grace period under the Bayanihan to Heal as
One Act and the Bayanihan to Recover as One Act, DBPLC’s loan portfolio suffered
from the credit deterioration of its clients’ accounts. As of September 30, 2020, DBPLC
determined an increase in the Expected Credit Losses amounting to P140.424 million
which the BSP approved for staggered booking on December 29, 2020.
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Reverse Transcription Polymerase Chain Reaction (RT-PCR) tests for employees,
disinfection service and purchases of supplies and protective equipment
1.9
On May 16, 2020, the Department of Labor and Employment (DOLE) issued Labor
Advisory No. 18 series of 2020 Guidelines on the Cost of COVID-19 Prevention and
Control Measures, which provides, under Section 2 of the Advisory, that all employers
shall shoulder the cost of COVID-19 prevention and control measures such as but not
limited to the following: testing, disinfection facilities, hand sanitizers, personal protective
equipment (PPEs i.e., face mask), signages, proper orientation and training of workers
including information, education and communication materials on COVID-19 prevention
and control.
1.10
In compliance with the DOLE advisory, DBPLC, as a non-chartered GOCC under
the Labor Code of the Philippines, paid a total of P49,500.00 in 2020 for the Reverse
Transcription Polymerase Chain Reaction (RT-PCR) test of employees exposed to
COVID-19 . Also, disinfection service, supplies and protective equipment intended for the
prevention of COVID-19 were procured totaling P97,985.35. Payments for said expenses
were sourced from DBPLC’s approved CY 2020 regular budget for Risk and Compliance
under Miscellaneous Expenses. The procurement was in accordance with existing
regulations.
Provision for shuttle services for employees reporting for work
1.11 On April 30, 2020, the DOLE and the Department of Trade and Industry issued the
Interim Guidelines on Workplace Prevention and Control of COVID-19. Item 5, Section V
thereof, requires employers, where applicable, to provide shuttle services and/or decent
accommodation on near-site location to lessen travel and people movement. DBPLC
provided shuttle service to 28 employees who were required to report for work on a
skeletal work force during the implementation of community quarantine on April to
December 2020, in compliance with the issued interim guidelines. The total transportation
expenses and maintenance on company vehicle incurred in for the periods mentioned
amounted to P127,000.44.

Gender and Development (GAD)
2.
DBPLC adhered to the mandate of Republic Act (RA) No. 9710, An Act Providing
for the Magna Carta of Women (MCW), by adopting gender mainstreaming in their
systems, structures, policies, programs, processes, and procedures.
2.1
As a continuing effort to adhere to the mandate of RA No. 9710, the DBPLC has
adopted gender mainstreaming as a strategy to promote women’s human rights and
eliminate gender discrimination in their systems, structures, policies, programs,
processes, and procedures. For CY 2020 audit of the GAD funds and activities, the
following were observed:
a. GAD Focal Point System (GFPS) was created in accordance with MCW thru
the issuance of Office Order No. 10-19 dated August 15, 2019;
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b. GAD Plan and Budget (GPB) for CY 2020 was prepared, approved by the
Head of Agency, submitted to and endorsed by the (Philippine Commission
for Women (PCW) and submitted to the auditor during the audit period;
c. GAD budget of P2.635 million or five (5%) per cent of the total corporate
operating budget of P52.700 million was appropriated;
d. GAD Accomplishment Report was prepared by the Agency and submitted to
PCW on March 15, 2021 in accordance with PCW Memorandum Circular
2021-01, pending review and endorsement. The total attributed cost
amounted to P3.238 million or 6.14 per cent of the total corporate operating
budget;
e. Sex-disaggregated data was on file. However, conduct of gender analysis
training was suspended during the pandemic, hence, no gender sensitivity
analysis report for 2020 was provided to the auditor; and
f.

GAD monitoring and evaluation system (MES) was partially implemented.

2.2
We acknowledged Management’s adherence to RA No. 9710 and we
recommended continued effort to adopt gender mainstreaming in their systems,
structures, policies, programs, processes, and procedures.

Compliance with Tax Laws
3.
DBPLC complied with tax laws and regulations, particularly, on the requirements
of Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 17-2011 and Revenue Regulation No. 15-2010.
3.1
Information on taxes and licenses paid or accrued during the taxable year 2020
was disclosed in Part I of the report, under Note 25 to the Financial Statements for CY
2020. The taxes withheld on compensation, benefits and other sources amounting to
P22.223 million were remitted to the Bureau of Internal Revenue within the deadline
prescribed under the National Internal Revenue Code.

Dividends to the National Government
4.
In compliance with Republic Act (RA) No. 7656 requiring the declaration of
dividends by Government-Owned and/or Controlled Corporations, DBPLC is required to
declare and remit at least 50 per cent of its annual net earnings.
4.1
The Board of Directors of DBPLC, in its April 16, 2020 meeting, approved the
declaration of cash dividends for CY 2019 amounting to P17.716 million. Payment of
dividend was made to the Bureau of Treasury on April 20, 2020.
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SSS, Philhealth and Pag-IBIG Premiums
5.
In 2020, DBPLC complied with RA No. 8282 on the collection and remittance of
contributions to SSS as follows:
a.
mandatory monthly contribution of covered employees and employer in
accordance with Section 18; and
b.
remittance of employees’ and employer’s contributions and employees’
compensation premium within the prescribed period pursuant to Section 19.
5.1
DBPLC also complied on the payment of national health insurance premium
contributions to the Philhealth under Section 18 of Title III, Rule III of the Implementing
Rules and Regulations of RA No. 7875 as amended, as well as with the collection and
remittance of contributions to the Pag-IBIG Fund under Section 3 of Rule VII of the
Implementing Rules and Regulations of RA No. 9679.
5.2
The outstanding payables as of December 31, 2020 to SSS, Philhealth and PagIBIG amounting to P67,181, P23,263, and P16,126, respectively, were all remitted to the
agencies concerned in January 2021.

Targets and Accomplishments
6.
For CY 2020, DBPLC continued to fulfill its mandate by providing leasing and
other asset-based financing services to the public and private sectors to bring about
nationwide development in support of the Government’s priorities.
6.1
The following are DBPLC’s CY 2020 accomplishments against its targets under
its five strategic perspectives, namely, social impact, finance, stakeholder, internal
processes, and learning and growth:
1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Objectives/Measures
Full Year Target
Accomplishments
Remarks
Support the Government’s economic development priorities by providing leasing and financing services to various
industries
a. Increase total loan and lease portfolio (net
P3.100 billion
P2.929 billion
P171 million short
as per balance sheet)
of target
Achieve expected return on shareholder investment by growing revenues through the expansion of credit portfolio and by
efficient management of resources.
b. Maintain return on equity-net income after
2%
1.55%
0.45% short of
tax (REO-NIAT)
target
Provide Access of DBP Priority Sectors and SMEs to DBP-LC Financing Services
c. Increase the Percentage of Clients within
76%
78.26%
1.74% above target
the DBP Priority Sectors and SMEs
Achieve a Satisfactory Rating from Customers in the Delivery of Financing Services
d. Percentage of Satisfied Customers
90%
100%
Based on survey
conducted on
December 28, 2020
to January 15,
2021
Diversify Industry Exposure with Expanded Market Coverage and Product Offerings
e. Increase the Number of New Accounts
5
3
2 short of target
Approved
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f.

6.

9.

Percentage of Real and Other Properties
Acquired (ROPA) to Total Assets

Accomplishments
100%

≤1%

Streamline Processes Based on Industry Best Practices
i.
Percentage of Applications Processed
Within Prescribed Period from Receipt of
Complete Requirements
j.

8.

Full Year Target
100% of Targets for
2020 Based on the
Board Approved
Road Map

Remarks
Achieved target

Achieve High Quality Portfolio Through Adoption of Best Practices in Account Management and Credit Risk Due Diligence
g. Improve Past Due Rate
≤5%
6.28%
1.28% above target
h.

7.

Objectives/Measures
Ensure Geographical Spread of Credit
Accounts

Attain Quality Management Certification

0.29%

Achieved target

100%

Achieved target

Passed Surveillance
Audit

Achieved target

To be determined

Data not yet
available

100%

Retain ISO
9001:2015
Certification (Pass
Surveillance Audit)

Ensure personnel complement best fit to achieve organizational objectives
k. Improved Competency Level of the
Improvement in the
Competency
Organization
Baseline of the
Organization

Develop and implement complementary management and technological systems to support business operations
l.
Implementation of Information Systems
100% Completion of
To be determined
Data not yet
available
2020 Targets Based
Strategic Plan (ISSP)
on ISSP 2020- 2024

Status of Audit Suspensions, Disallowances and Charges
7.
As of December 31, 2020, audit disallowance with a balance of P3,323,147.36,
carried over from prior years are on appeal with the Commission. There were no audit
disallowances, suspensions and charges during the year.
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PART III

STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR
YEAR’S AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR YEARS’ AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS
The audit recommendation embodied in CY 2019 AAR was fully implemented.
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